



AGENDA FOR THE TOWN WORKSHOP

December 3, 2015

7:00 p.m.

Public Meeting

7:00 PM Meeting with Property Owners on West Main Street. Discussion of construction of alley between Elm Street and South Jefferson Street.

Public Hearings

7:20 PM **Ordinance 15-12-01 - Subdivision**

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 16 – ‘SUBDIVISIONS’ OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE; TO ADD DEFINITIONS FOR THE TERMS “CUL-DE-SAC”, “FLOODPLAIN”, “PLAT”, “RIGHT-OF-WAY”, “ARTERIAL STREET” AND “TRACT”; TO REQUIRE THE SUBMISSION OF ELECTRONIC COPIES OF CERTAIN PLATS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS; TO REDUCE THE DEMANDS OF A PROPOSED SUBDIVISION OR PROJECT FOR WATER AND SEWER CONSUMPTION TO TWO HUNDRED FIFTY (250) GALLONS OF WATER PER EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNIT; TO REMOVE BONDS AS AN ACCEPTABLE TYPE OF GUARANTEE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS; TO ADD PROVISIONS RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT IN WETLANDS, FLOODPLAINS, WATER BUFFER AREAS AND FOREST LANDS; TO INCREASE MINIMUM SIGHT DISTANCES TO 300 FEET FOR DEVELOPMENTS ON COLLECTOR STREETS; TO REQUIRE STREET NAME SIGNS TO BE INSTALLED INITIALLY BY THE DEVELOPER; AND TO MAKE OTHER NON-SUBSTANTIVE STYLISTIC AND LINGUISTIC CHANGES.

Ordinance 15-12-02- Board of Appeals

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.44 OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE TO MAKE STYLISTIC AND GRAMMATICAL CHANGES AND TO CORRECT REFERENCES TO STATE STATUTES AND COURT RULES.

Ordinance 15-12-03 – Sign Regulations

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.36 OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO SIGNS; TO REVISE PROVISIONS RELATING TO POLITICAL SIGNS; TO AUTHORIZE THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR TO ENFORCE CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CODE RELATING TO SIGNS; TO MAKE STYLISTIC AND GRAMMATICAL CHANGES.

STAFF REPORTS:

Staff Planner

Engineer’s Report

Main Street Manager

Regular Workshop Items



MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 20, 2015

TO: Burgess and Commissioners

CC: Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

FROM: Cindy Unangst, Staff Planner

SUBJECT: Planning Commission recommended changes to Title 16 – Subdivisions of the Middletown Town Code

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS PROPOSED CHANGES – OCTOBER 19, 2015

The Planning Commission has reviewed Title 16 - Subdivisions and has made the following recommendations for updates to this section. A public hearing was held on Monday, October 19, 2015.

Proposed changes:

- 1) Changed references of director of operations and construction to director of public works.
- 2) Changed the daily consumption of gallons of water per dwelling unit from 300 gallons to 250 gallons per the changed policy of the Town. (Section 16.12.055)
- 3) All sketch plans shall show topography at five-foot contour intervals instead of only where the slope conditions exceed eight percent. (Section 16.16.020)
- 4) Changed the minimum sight distance on collector streets from 200 feet to 300 feet. (Section 16.28.030)

- 5) Changed reference to private streets from 'will not be approved' to 'will not be maintained by the town'. (Section 16.28.030)
- 6) Changed reference to street signs erection from 'by the town' to 'by the developer, initially'. (Section 16.32.020)

Proposed deletions:

- 1) Deleted the definition of "double frontage lot". (Section 16.04.030)
- 2) Deleted penalty provisions in Section 16.08.140 that are already in place per State Code.
- 3) Deleted type of guarantee of construction of public improvements no longer accepted by the Town. (Section 16.12.070)
- 4) Deleted reference to condominiums. (Section 16.16.020)

Proposed additions:

- 1) Added definitions for "cul-de-sac", "floodplain", "plat", "right-of-way", "arterial street", and "tract". (Section 16.04.030)
- 2) Added references to the state's Land Use Article where Article 66B is cited.
- 3) Added penalty provisions for violations of the subdivision regulations. (Section 16.08.140)
- 4) Added references to electronic copies of plans that are to be submitted.
- 5) Added references to architectural renderings or drawings that are to be submitted.
- 6) Added language regarding waterbody buffer requirements. (Section 16.28.020)
- 7) Alleys will be allowed in overlay districts to represent what has already been approved in recent developments. (Section 16.28.030)

For conforming purposes:

- 1) Changed the word 'master' to 'comprehensive' in relation to references to the towns comprehensive plan.
- 2) Amended references to Frederick County to conform to the new executive council and board.
- 3) Changed 'major highway' to 'transportation' in relations to comprehensive plan sections.

Other minor edits were primarily for grammatical purposes.

After the Public Hearing in which there were no public comments, there was further discussion among the Planning Commission members of the proposed changes to the Subdivision regulations.

- 1) In Section 16.12.050.E, it was agreed to add the words 'stormwater management' after the word 'road', so that the proposed language now reads – "including, but not limited to, roads, stormwater management and public spaces."
- 2) The last proposed sentence in Section 16.12.050.E was agreed to be moved to the end of Section 16.12.050.C, and changed to read – "All appropriate entities shall review all architectural information and submit recommendations to the planning commission for their consideration."

ORDINANCE NO. 15-12-01

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 16 – ‘SUBDIVISIONS’ OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE; TO ADD DEFINITIONS FOR THE TERMS “CUL-DE-SAC”, “FLOODPLAIN”, “PLAT”, “RIGHT-OF-WAY”, “ARTERIAL STREET” AND “TRACT”; TO REQUIRE THE SUBMISSION OF ELECTRONIC COPIES OF CERTAIN PLATS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS; TO REDUCE THE DEMANDS OF A PROPOSED SUBDIVISION OR PROJECT FOR WATER AND SEWER CONSUMPTION TO TWO HUNDRED FIFTY (250) GALLONS OF WATER PER EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNIT; TO REMOVE BONDS AS AN ACCEPTABLE TYPE OF GUARANTEE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS; TO ADD PROVISIONS RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT IN WETLANDS, FLOODPLAINS, WATER BUFFER AREAS AND FOREST LANDS; TO INCREASE MINIMUM SIGHT DISTANCES TO 300 FEET FOR DEVELOPMENTS ON COLLECTOR STREETS; TO REQUIRE STREET NAME SIGNS TO BE INSTALLED INITIALLY BY THE DEVELOPER; AND TO MAKE OTHER NON-SUBSTANTIVE STYLISTIC AND LINGUISTIC CHANGES.

SECTION I. BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Burgess and Commissioners of Middletown that Title 16, of the Middletown Municipal Code be, and hereby is, amended as follows. Language being deleted is designated by being ~~{in brackets and stricken through.}~~ New language is designated by being in **BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS OR NUMBERS**:

Title 16 – Subdivisions

Chapter 16.04 - Adoption, Purpose and Definitions

Sections:

16.04.020 Purpose.

- A. *{Unchanged}*
- B. *{Unchanged}*
- C. These regulations are designed to provide for the control of erosion and sedimentation; the protection from flooding; the proper arrangement of streets in relation to other existing planned streets and to the town ~~{master}~~ **COMPREHENSIVE** plan; the adequate and convenient placement of public school sites and of open space for traffic, utilities, access of firefighting apparatus, recreation, light and air; and the avoidance of congestion of population, including minimum width and area of lots.

16.04.030 Definitions.

As used in this title:

"Alley" means a right-of-way which provides secondary service access to the side or rear of abutting properties.

"Block" means a tract of land within a subdivision that is entirely bounded by streets or by a combination of streets and public parks, cemeteries, railroad rights-of-way, waterways, or corporate boundary lines of the town.

"Building setback line" means a line beyond which the foundation wall and/or any enclosed porch, vestibule or other enclosed portion of a building shall not project as determined by the yard requirements.

"Comprehensive plan" is also referred to as the master development plan of Middletown, Maryland.

"County master ~~{highway}~~ **TRANSPORTATION** plan" means the official plan of major roads, highways, streets, and other ~~{ways}~~ **TRANSPORTATION CONCEPTS ORIGINALLY** adopted by ~~{the}~~ Frederick County ~~[planning commission and approved by the board of county commissioners of Frederick County]~~ on November 25, 1959, and ~~[as amended in accordance with Article 66B of the Annotated Code of Maryland.]~~ **WHICH IS PERIODICALLY AMENDED AS PART OF AND AS A SUPPLEMENT TO THE TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT OF THE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.**

"County plans" means the officially adopted master plans for the comprehensive development of Frederick County, or any part of such plan or any amendments thereto.

"Crosswalk" means a public or private right-of-way which cuts through a block and is used exclusively by pedestrians.

"CUL-DE-SAC" MEANS A STREET WITH A SINGLE COMMON INGRESS AND EGRESS AND WITH A TURNAROUND AT THE END.

"Developers" means the owner(s) or agent(s) under legal authority of the owner(s) who undertake to cause a parcel of land to be designed, subdivided, developed and recorded as a subdivision.

"Easement" means a grant by a property owner of the use of land for use, construction or maintenance of facilities, utilities, drainage or access without giving up title to the land.

"FLOODPLAIN" MEANS A RELATIVELY FLAT OR LOWLAND AREA ADJOINING A RIVER, STREAM, OR WATERCOURSE, WHICH IS SUBJECT TO PERIODIC, PARTIAL OR COMPLETE INUNDATION.

"Improvement plan" means a plan that graphically depicts to scale proposed improvements.

"Improvements" means changes and additions to land necessary to prepare it for building development sites, future use and including street paving and curbing, grading, monuments, drainage ways, sewers, fire hydrants, water mains, sidewalks, and other public works and appurtenances.

"Lot" means a parcel or portion of land separated from other parcels or portions either by descriptions as on a subdivision plat or a recorded survey map, or by metes and bounds, for the purpose of transfer, sale, lease or other changes in ownership or use or to be occupied by a building and its accessory buildings together with such open space as required and having frontage on a public right-of-way.

~~["Lot, Double Frontage. "Double front lot" means a lot extending, through the block from one street to another.】~~

"Outlot" means a parcel of land within a subdivision and which has been included on a preliminary or final plat but not designated as a buildable lot due to insufficient size and/or frontage or peculiar site or topographical problems. Outlots shall be provided only where necessary for access to adjoining properties or where necessary to provide an appropriate future street pattern.

"Performance bond" means a surety bond or cash deposit made out to the town in an amount equal to the full cost of the improvements which are required by this title, and said surety bond or cash deposit being legally sufficient to secure to the town that said improvements will be constructed in accordance with this title.

"Planning commission" means the planning commission of the town of Middletown, Maryland.

“PLAT” MEANS THE MAP OF A SUBDIVISION SHOWING THE NUMBER AND DIMENSIONS OF LOTS, PUBLIC AND PRIVATE RIGHTS-OF-WAY, AND EASEMENTS. THE FINAL PLAT MUST BE FILED AND RECORDED WITH THE COUNTY CLERK IN THE COUNTY PLAT BOOK.

"Preliminary plat" means the preliminary drawings and supplementary material showing the proposed layout of the subdivision to be submitted to the planning commission for its consideration.

“RIGHT-OF-WAY” MEANS THE LEGAL RIGHT TO CROSS OVER PROPERTY.

"Start of construction" means the placement of slab or footings, piles, columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation.

"Street" means a public or dedicated way, or a public proposed right-of-way, widening, or extension of an existing street or public way shown on any plan approved by the **PLANNING** commission ~~[and which serves as primary access to abutting properties.]~~

STREET, ARTERIAL. "ARTERIAL STREET" MEANS A CONTINUOUS ROUTE THROUGH AREAS THAT TYPICALLY CARRY MODERATE TO HIGH VOLUMES OF TRAFFIC.

Street, Collector. "Collector street" means a street which, in addition to providing ingress to properties abutting thereon, is intended to collect traffic from or distribute it to a series of local access streets within a neighborhood.

Street, Local. "Local street" means a street intended to serve and provide access exclusively to the properties abutting thereon, and not to be used as a channel for through traffic.

Street, Private. "Private street" means any street which is under the jurisdiction of an individual, corporation or trustee, or any street which is privately owned, established, constructed or maintained.

Street, Service Road. "Service road street" means a road not serving as a collector road, but merely providing access to properties fronting on a highway, which road is contiguous and parallel to the major highway. Adjacent here shall mean that no structure shall be built between the service road and the major highway.

"Subdivision" means the division of a lot, tract, or parcel of land into two or more lots, plats, sites, or other divisions of land for the purpose, whether immediate or future, of sale or of building development. It includes resubdivision and, when appropriate to the context, relates to the process of resubdividing or to the land or territory subdivided.

Technical Advisory Committee. In order to assist developers in getting information concerning these regulations, the planning commission may organize a technical advisory committee. The committee will meet at intervals necessary to enable developers to conveniently contact all departments involved. The developer shall prepare a preliminary plat before meeting with the committee. The committee may be composed of staff members of both the Middletown and county planning commissions, State Roads Commission, county roads board, county health department, Metropolitan Commission, county soil conservation committee, and any other department or agency concerned with development.

"TRACT" MEANS LAND UNDER SINGLE OWNERSHIP OR CONTROL. A TRACT USUALLY COVERS A SUBSTANTIAL ACREAGE AND HAS THE POTENTIAL TO BE SUBDIVIDED INTO LOTS.

Chapter 16.08 - ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

Sections:

16.08.010 - Administrative authority.

The following offices of the government of Middletown are concerned with the administration of this title:

A. The Town Board. The town board is vested with the following responsibilities with regard to subdivision control:

1. Amendment of the regulations of this title when found necessary and desirable;
2. Initiation of appropriate proceedings to enforce the provisions of this title.

B. The Town Planning [~~and Zoning~~] Commission. The planning commission shall administer this title, and in furtherance of said authority, shall:

1. Maintain permanent and current records of this title, including amendments thereto;
2. Receive and process and check for compliance with these regulations all preliminary plats and final plats (together with applications);
3. Forward copies of the preliminary plat to other town, county and state offices and agencies for their recommendations, and report wherever appropriate;
4. Make all other determinations required by the regulations herein;
5. Give preliminary and final approval of all subdivisions submitted.

16.08.020 - Subdivider must prepare and record plat of subdivision.

From and after the adoption of these regulations, any owner or proprietor of any tract of land located in the territory to which these regulations may apply who creates a subdivision shall cause a plat of such subdivision to be made in accordance with the regulations set forth herein and the provisions of **THE LAND USE** Article [~~66B~~] of the Annotated Code of Maryland. After having secured the approval thereof by the planning commission, the subdivider shall cause a copy of the said plat to be recorded in the office of the clerk of the court. Any subdivision or portion thereof which may be in process of development, but has not had a plat recorded at the time of adoption of these regulations, shall also be subject to the requirements and procedures contained herein.

16.08.120 - Saving clause.

If any section or article of these regulations ~~is~~ **IS** found to be unconstitutional or illegal by the court, the said section or article will cease to be effective until an amendment is made and adopted. The unconstitutionality of any section or article, however, shall have no bearing on the effectiveness of the remainder of these regulations.

16.08.140 Violation—Penalty.

~~[Any subdivider who violates these regulations shall be subject to the penalties prescribed in Section 5.05 of Article 66B, Annotated Code of Maryland, which are as follows:~~

~~Whoever, being the owner or agent of the owner of any land located within a subdivision, transfers or sells or agrees to sell or negotiate to sell any land by reference to or exhibition of or by other use of a plat of a subdivision, before the plat has been approved by the Planning Commission and recorded or filed in the office of the appropriate County Clerk, shall forfeit and pay a civil penalty of not less than two hundred dollars (\$200) and not more than one thousand dollars (\$1000) in the discretion of the Court for each lot or parcel so transferred or sold or agreed or negotiated to be sold; and the description of the lot or parcel by metes and bounds in the instrument of transfer or other document used in the process of selling or transferring shall not exempt the transaction from the penalties or from the remedies herein provided. The municipal corporation may enjoin the transfer or sale or agreement by action for injunction brought in any court of equity jurisdiction or may recover the penalty by civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction.]~~

A VIOLATION OF ANY OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS TITLE BY ANY PERSON OR ENTITY MAY BE ENFORCED BY THE TOWN AS A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROCEDURES AND PENALTIES FOR A MUNICIPAL INFRACTION AS PROVIDED IN CHAPTERS 1.12 AND 1.16 OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE. IN ADDITION, THE TOWN MAY ENFORCE THE PROVISIONS OF THIS TITLE PURSUANT TO ANY OTHER APPLICABLE STATE, FEDERAL COUNTY OR LOCAL LAW. THE TOWN MAY ALSO SEEK ENFORCEMENT OF THE PROVISIONS OF THIS TITLE BY WAY OF A CIVIL ACTION FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE, INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, MONETARY DAMAGES OR OTHER REMEDY OTHERWISE AVAILABLE TO THE TOWN EITHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY.

Chapter 16.12 - SUBDIVISION PROCEDURES

Sections:

16.12.020 - Sketch plan.

A. Where a subdivision plat includes improvements, the developer may submit a sketch plan to the planning commission in accordance with the provisions of ~~{section}~~ **SECTION 16.16.020**.

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. *{Unchanged}*

16.12.050 Submission of preliminary plan of subdivision for approval.

A. The subdivider shall prepare a preliminary plat of the proposed subdivision conforming with the requirements set forth in Chapter 16.20. At least thirty (30) days prior to a regularly scheduled meeting of the planning commission, the plat along with six black line or similar prints **AND AN ELECTRONIC COPY** of the plat shall be filed with the planning commission; however, if a state road is involved, three additional prints shall be provided.

B. In case any part of the proposed subdivision is located within the jurisdiction of Frederick County, an additional two copies of the preliminary ~~{plat}~~ **PLAT** shall be filed. The planning commission shall transmit these additional copies to the appropriate authorities for action.

C. The preliminary plat will be checked as to its conformity with the comprehensive plans, the town zoning ordinance, and other applicable provisions, and the principles, standards, and requirements hereinafter set forth. Copies will be referred to any other county or state officials who may be concerned with public improvements or health requirements. **ALL APPROPRIATE ENTITIES SHALL REVIEW ALL ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION AND SUBMIT RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION FOR THEIR CONSIDERATION.**

D. At its regular meeting the planning commission shall approve or disapprove the preliminary plat, or may approve it subject to specific changes or modifications. Reasons for disapproval will be noted on the plat or by letter. No plat shall be approved that is in conflict with these subdivision regulations, and zoning ordinances or with any part of an officially adopted feature of the town comprehensive ~~{development}~~ plan.

E. Along with consideration of the preliminary plat, the town board and the developer shall ~~{arrive at an understanding concerning the provision of}~~ **HAVE A WRITTEN AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF EACH OF THE PARTIES RELATING TO** water and sewage services plus any other public improvements contemplated **INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ROADS, STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND PUBLIC SPACES.**

F. Preliminary plats, once approved, shall remain valid so long as there occurs final plat approval and recording of at least twenty (20) of the preliminary approved lots within three years of the date the preliminary plan was approved. Thereafter, at least twenty (20) lots must be approved and recorded per year for the preliminary plan to remain valid. Extension of the

preliminary plan may be granted by the planning commission for delays attributable to town, county or state agencies **OR OTHER EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND THE CONTROL OF THE DEVELOPER.**

16.12.055 - Water and sewer capacity certification.

A. Upon approval of the preliminary plat, the town administrator shall conduct a review and analysis of the capacities of the town water and sewer systems in order to determine whether there exists sufficient water and sewer capacity to service the proposed subdivision or the development project thereon. The review and analysis shall be conducted in coordination with the director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS** and the water and sewer superintendent who shall provide the administrator with pertinent information and data regarding the capacity of the town to provide water and sewer service to the proposed subdivision or project. In the review and analysis of the town water and sewer capacity, the demands of the proposed subdivision or project for water and sewer shall be based upon a daily consumption of ~~{three hundred (300)}~~ **TWO HUNDRED FIFTY (250)** gallons of water per equivalent dwelling unit.

- B. *{Unchanged}*
- C. *{Unchanged}*
- D. *{Unchanged}*
- E. *{Unchanged}*

16.12.060 - Improvement plans.

Upon approval of the preliminary plat and issuance of a certificate of water and sewer capacity, the developer shall prepare and submit to the ~~{Planning Commission}~~ **PLANNING COMMISSION**, for review and approval, an improvement plan for the installation of improvements in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 16.32 of this title. All such improvements shall be designed in compliance with and to the standards, plans and specifications set forth in this title. Copies of such improvement plan will be referred by the ~~{Planning Commission}~~ **PLANNING COMMISSION** to the appropriate town, county and/or state officials for review and approval, subject to such changes or conditions as in its judgment may be required. Approval of an improvement plan shall expire three (3) years from the date on which the ~~{Planning Commission}~~ **PLANNING COMMISSION** approves the improvement plan unless construction has begun as defined by "start of construction." Once improvements have begun, the developer will be expected to proceed with due diligence to completion with visible, substantial and progressive construction activities. Extension of the improvement plan may be granted by the ~~{Planning Commission}~~ **PLANNING COMMISSION** for delays attributable to town, county or

state agencies **OR OTHER EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND THE CONTROL OF THE DEVELOPER.**

. *{COMMENT not intended for codification: In the codification of this section, the amendments in this section to the term "Planning Commission" are intended for the purpose of using only lower case letters for the term "planning commission".}*

16.12.070 - Approval of final plat.

A. *{Unchanged}*

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. The subdivider shall file five mylar prints **PLUS AN ELECTRONIC COPY** of the final plat with the town.

D. The final plat shall be acted upon within thirty (30) days of filing. If it is found by the planning commission that the final plat is in conformance with all applicable regulations, it shall approve the final plat and obtain the signature of the chairperson of the planning commission **OR THE CHAIRPERSON'S DESIGNEE** on the plat. The signature of the chairperson **OR THE CHAIRPERSON'S DESIGNEE** shall mean that the town is satisfied that the requirements of these regulations have been complied with. Reasons for the disapproval of any plat shall be stated upon the records of the town planning commission.

E. Water and Sewer Facilities.

1. In General. A proposed final plat shall be disapproved unless the facilities for conveying, pumping, storing, or treating water or sewage to serve the proposed subdivision would be completed in time to serve the proposed subdivision.

2. Presumption of Timely Completion. A presumption shall exist that the water facilities and the sewer facilities for the proposed subdivision will be completed in time to serve the proposed subdivision if ~~{øf}~~ all of the following requirements are satisfied:

a. The subdivider and the town have entered into and executed separate written public works agreements which provide for the construction and installation of water lines and facilities and sewer lines and facilities to service the proposed subdivision;

b. All necessary off-site land, easements, and rights-of-way required for construction and installation of the water facilities and the sewer facilities have been conveyed to the town and recorded in the land records;

c. All contracts funded by the developer for the construction and installation of the public water lines and facilities and the public sewer lines and facilities to provide service up to the site have been executed;

d. All letters of credit securing compliance with the public works agreements for construction and installation of public water and sewer lines or facilities to provide service to the proposed subdivision have been executed and delivered to the town; and

e. The {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS** has certified that all such off-site lines and facilities shall be operational within ninety (90) days of the final plat recordation.

3. Water and/or Sewer Easement Extensions. Water and/or sewer easement extensions to service adjoining properties within the service area shall be extended to the boundary line as determined by the {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS**.

F. Recording Final Plat. The town shall record the approved final plat with the clerk of the circuit court for Frederick County. Approval of the final plat by the town planning commission shall not be deemed to constitute or effect an acceptance by the public of the dedication of any street or other proposed public way or space shown on said plat.

G. Guarantee of Improvements.

1. Types of Guarantees. Prior to the signing of a final subdivision plat for record, the developer shall furnish the town one of the following guarantees of construction of public improvements:

a. Completion and acceptance of public improvements covered by the final plat;

b. Funds placed in escrow with an escrow agent satisfactory to the town with an agreement between the escrow agent and the town that the funds be partially released from escrow from time to time as requested by the developer to pay invoices for work completed and installation of the public improvements in the area covered by the final plat;

~~e. A completion bond satisfactory to the town furnished by the contractor guaranteeing completion of the improvements. Such bond shall run to the benefit of the town of Middletown;}~~

~~{d}~~ C. An irrevocable letter of credit or similar agreement from a recognized lender satisfactory to the town guaranteeing payment for the installation of the public improvements in the area covered by the final plat.

The type of guarantee required shall be in the discretion of the town.

2. Amount of Guarantee. A certificate of the cost of improvements shall be filed by the {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS** with the burgess and commissioners of Middletown. The guarantee shall be in the amount of the cost of improvements plus a contingency of up to twenty-five (25) percent in addition to the cost of improvements as decided by the burgess and commissioners upon recommendation by the {town}

director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS**. In the event the improvements are not completed within one year following the effective date of the guarantee, the burgess and commissioners, upon recommendation of the {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS**, may require an increase in the amount of the guarantee.

3. Release of Guarantee. Guarantees may be released from time to time, in whole or in part, upon recommendation of the {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS** and approval by the burgess and commissioners of Middletown; provided, however, that a retainage of up to five percent plus the contingency required will be held until both of the following occur:

a. Final inspection and approval by the {town} director of ~~{operations and construction}~~ **PUBLIC WORKS**; and

b. Approval and acceptance by the burgess and commissioners.

4. Records. The town will maintain records showing all guarantees in force as well as those which have been released.

Chapter 16.16 - SKETCH PLAN

Sections:

16.16.020 - Required information.

A sketch plan must contain the following information:

A. The sketch plans shall be submitted ~~{on paper}~~ **ELECTRONICALLY** and shall be clear and legible. ~~{Illegible plans will be discarded and the subdivider notified}~~ ;

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. *{Unchanged}*

D. Title information:

1. Proposed name,

2. Scale of {plat} **PLAN**,

3. Date;

E. *{Unchanged}*

F. ~~{Northpoint}~~ **NORTH POINT**;

G. *{Unchanged}*

H. ~~{Where slope conditions exceed eight percent, the plat}~~ **THE PLAN** shall show topography at five-foot contour intervals. Contour lines shall be indicated one hundred (100) feet beyond subdivision boundary line except along existing roads. Interpolated contours from USGS quadrangle maps will be accepted, and shall be indicated. The use of interpolated contours should be indicated on the ~~{plat}~~ **PLAN**;

I. *{Unchanged}*

J. *{Unchanged}*

K. *{Unchanged}*

L. *{Unchanged}*

M. *{Unchanged}*

N. Zoning district classification, water and sewer classification of **COUNTY** master plan for the subject tract;

O. In cases of ~~{condominium or}~~ multi-family projects (apartment, townhouse, etc.) the following additional items shall be shown:

1. Approximate location of each building,
2. Total number of units in each building,
3. Number of parking spaces in each off-street parking area, and total thereof,
4. Interior road or street access, whether public or private.

Chapter 16.20 - PRELIMINARY PLAT

Sections:

16.20.010 - Required information.

The preliminary plat of the proposed subdivision shall comply with the following requirements and contain the following information:

A. General Style and Form.

1. *{Unchanged}*

2. *{Unchanged}*

3. Drawing Material. It shall be drawn in ink, in a reproducible material, and shall be at a scale no smaller than one inch per one hundred (100) feet. **IT SHALL BE SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY AS WELL AS PAPER SUBMISSIONS, AS REQUIRED.**

4. *{Unchanged}*

5. *{Unchanged}*

6. *{Unchanged}*

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. Information as to Proposed Development. The following proposed development information shall be shown:

1. - 6 *{Unchanged}*

7. **ARCHITECTURAL RENDERINGS OF PROPOSED BUILDINGS IN SUBDIVISION AS WELL AS ILLUSTRATIVE DEPICTION OF SUBDIVISION AS A WHOLE.**

8. Proposed Zoning Change. Proposed uses of property and any proposed zoning change.

Chapter 16.24 - FINAL PLAT

Sections:

16.24.010 - Required information.

The final plat of the subdivision shall comply with the following requirements and contain the following information:

A. General Style and Form.

1. Drawing. It **SHALL BE DRAWN IN INK, IN A REPRODUCIBLE MATERIAL, AND SHALL BE AT A SCALE NO SMALLER THAN ONE INCH PER ONE HUNDRED (100) FEET. ONCE APPROVED, IT** shall be legibly and accurately drawn on ~~{tracing linen or}~~ mylar sheets eighteen (18) inches by twenty-four (24) inches in size, and at a

scale of one inch to fifty (50) feet, or one inch to one hundred (100) feet, depending upon the size and nature of the subdivision. If more space is needed, additional sheets may be used. Drawing must ~~be~~ **HAVE** a three and one-half inch margin on the left side and a one-half inch margin on the other sides. Each additional sheet on a final plat shall contain all of the necessary information so as to stand on its own. **IT SHALL ALSO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW ELECTRONICALLY.**

2. *{Unchanged}*

3. *{Unchanged}*

B. Graphic Information. The following graphic information shall be shown:

1. – 13. *{Unchanged}*

14. Water and Sewer Lines. Location and size of existing and proposed water and sewer lines, **IF NECESSARY.**

C. Certificates and Other Information. The following certificates and other information shall be included:

1. – 3. *{Unchanged}*

4. ~~{Protective}~~ Covenants. ~~{Protective}~~ ~~{e}~~ Covenants which apply to all the area as shown by the recorded plat shall be part of the recorded plat.

Chapter 16.28 - DESIGN STANDARDS

Sections:

16.28.010 - Minimum requirements.

The standards of design contained in this chapter are intended only as minimum requirements, and the developer should use standards consistent with the site conditions so as to assure a high-quality, pleasant, and durable neighborhood. All subdivisions shall conform to the official town ~~{or county master}~~ **COMPREHENSIVE** plan.

16.28.020 - Approval of subdivisions on land subject to ~~{adverse}~~ **UNIQUE** physical conditions.

The subdivision of land subject to flooding by the annual floodplain, as determined by floodplain soils, or a fifty (50) year storm or less as determined by the standards set by the Maryland Department of Geology and Mines or its successor will not be approved. A plat of a proposed subdivision located in an area having poor drainage or otherwise adverse physical conditions may be approved, provided the subdivider agrees to make such improvements as in the judgment of the town planning commission render the subdivision substantially safe and otherwise acceptable for residential use, and furnishes a performance bond or gives other guarantee satisfactory to the town board sufficient to cover the cost of such improvements as estimated by the officials having jurisdiction. **NO DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE ALLOWED ON FLOODPLAIN SOILS, OR ON NON-TIDAL WETLANDS.**

A PARCEL, LOT, OR TRACT OF LAND SUBMITTED TO THE TOWN OF MIDDLETOWN FOR SUBDIVISION OR RESUBDIVISION REVIEW AND APPROVAL SHALL BE SUBJECT TO WATERBODY BUFFER REQUIREMENTS. ALL SUBDIVISION PLANS SHALL HAVE WATERBODY BUFFERS OF AT LEAST 100 FEET FROM EACH BANK CLEARLY SHOWN AND CERTIFIED BY A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, OR REGISTERED PROPERTY LINE SURVEYOR. WATERBODY BUFFER WIDTHS MAY BE GREATER THAN 100 FEET IF FLOODPLAIN AND WETLANDS EXTEND BEYOND THE WATERBODY BUFFER AREA. ALL WATERBODY BUFFER AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NATURAL VEGETATIVE STATE UNLESS OTHERWISE UTILIZED FOR REFORESTATION OR AFFORESTATION TO SATISFY FOREST RESOURCE ORDINANCE OBLIGATIONS OR FOR ENVIRONMENTAL ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS ADMINISTERED OR APPROVED BY FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCIES.

FORESTED AREAS OR STEEP SLOPES WITH A GRADIENT OF 25% OR GREATER SHALL NOT BE DISTURBED BY DEVELOPMENT.

16.28.030 - Street design standards.

- A. *{Unchanged}*
- B. *{Unchanged}*
- C. All streets shall be considered in their relation to:
 - 1. – 4. *{Unchanged}*
 - 5. ~~{Master development}~~ **COMPREHENSIVE** plan (~~{major highway plan}~~ **TRANSPORTATION** section).
- D. Where such is not shown on the ~~{master}~~ **COMPREHENSIVE** plan, the arrangement of streets in a subdivision shall either:

1. Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection of existing principal streets; or

2. Conform to a plan for the neighborhood approved or adopted by the planning commission to meet a particular situation where topographical or other conditions make continuance or conformance to existing streets impracticable.

E. *{Unchanged}*

F. Access. ~~{Reserve}~~ SPITE strips controlling access to streets or alleys shall be prohibited.

G. Alignment.

1. – 4. *{Unchanged}*

5. Minimum sight distances (over a hill) shall be one hundred fifty (150) feet on local streets and ~~{two hundred (200)}~~ **THREE HUNDRED (300)** feet on collectors. The height of objects when determining the minimum sight distances shall be as follows:

a. Driver's eye height: 3.75 feet;

b. Height of object: 4.50 feet;

c. Head of headlamp: 2.00 feet.

H. Alleys. Alleys shall be included in all commercial and industrial areas if no other provisions are made for adequate access to parking and loading spaces. Alleys will ~~{not be approved in residential}~~ **ONLY BE ALLOWED IN OVERLAY** districts. In the absence of alleys, easements will be required for utility lines or drainage, such easements being a minimum width of twelve (12) feet or six feet on each side of a property line.

I. *{Unchanged}*

J. *{Unchanged}*

K. *{Unchanged}*

L. *{Unchanged}*

M. Minimize Interference with Through Traffic. Land abutting the arterial highways as designated by the town's ~~{major streets}~~ **TRANSPORTATION** plan should be platted with the view of making the lots, if for residential use, desirable for such use by cushioning the impact of heavy traffic upon them; also minimizing interference with traffic on such highways, roads, and streets as well as accident hazards from all kinds of subdivisions. This may be done:

a. By backing the lots upon the highway so that they front on and have access from a parallel minor street one-half block away;

b. By arranging the lots around a series of loop streets ~~{or dead-end streets}~~ stemming from a collector street. Such loops ~~{or dead-ends}~~ shall be one lot depth away from the highway.

The choice between the foregoing or other methods for accomplishing the desired purpose in a specific case must necessarily be made in consideration of topography and other physical conditions, the character of existing and contemplated developments, and other pertinent factors. In all cases the minimum distance between street connections on major collectors and access streets shall be five hundred (500) feet.

N. *{Unchanged}*

O. Private Streets. Private streets will not be ~~{approved}~~ **MAINTAINED BY THE TOWN**. This condition will be noted on the final plat. Common driveways leading to individual lots or driveways leading to common parking areas such as in a multifamily residential project shall not be considered **TOWN** streets.

P. Street Names. Street names shall be subject to approval by the planning commission **AND THE BURGESS AND COMMISSIONERS**. Names shall not duplicate or closely approximate existing street names in the town or county except for extension of existing streets.

Q. Right-of-Way Width—Pavement Width. Minimum widths for the right-of-way of streets, alleys and easements shall be as follows (extra widths may be required where necessary):

:

	ROW (feet)	Pavement (feet)
1. Collector streets		
Residential	60—70	34—40
Commercial/industrial	70	40
2. Local access:		
Residential	50—60	32—36
Commercial/industrial	60	36
3. Service roads	40	24
4. Cul-de-sacs	50 Radius	40 Radius
5. Alleys	20	16
6. Crosswalks	10	5 if needed
7. Easements (utility)	6	—

8. Easements (drainage)	What the [planning commission] DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS feels is necessary
<p>Note: Residential right-of-way and pavement requirements depend upon density of development. Refer to street design standards table subsection T of this section for specific details.</p>	

- R. {Unchanged}
- S. {Unchanged}
- T. Street Design Standards Summary.

Street Design Standards Summary						
National standards adopted for use on local, hilly terrain)						
	Local Street			Collector Street		
	Low ¹	Med ¹	High ¹	Low ¹	Med ¹	High ¹
Development density ²						
Right-of-way width (ft)	50	60	60	60	60	70
Pavement width (ft)	32	32	36	34	36	40
Vertical face curb	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Sidewalk width (ft)	4	5	5	5	5	6
Sidewalk distance from "back to curb" (ft)	5	6	6	6	6	6
Minimum sight distance (ft) (over a hill)	—150 ³ —			—300 ³ —		
Maximum grade	—10%—			—7%—		
Maximum cul-de-sac length (ft) (dead-end street with turnaround)	800	500	500	-	-	-
Maximum center line radii (ft) (around curve)	— 150—			—300—		
Minimum curbing radius (ft)	20	20	25	25	30	40
Design speed (MPH)	—25—			—30—		
Off-street parking necessary	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Street lighting	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

¹ Low—1 to 5 dwellings per gross acre
Medium—5.1 to 9.9 dwellings per gross acre
High—10 dwellings per gross acre and greater

² Commercial or industrial subdivision roads must meet the design standards of high density development for either local or collector streets as determined by the ~~{planning commission}~~
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS.

³ If this is impractical because of topographic conditions, may be decreased to one hundred ten (110) feet for local and two hundred (200) feet for collectors.

16.28.040 - Block design standards.

A. *{Unchanged}*

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. Business and industrial blocks may be specially designed to serve their particular purposes, which designs shall be subject to approval by the planning commission **WITH GUIDANCE FROM THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS.**

D. *{Unchanged}*

16.28.070 - Lot design standards.

A. *{Unchanged}*

B. Residential lots shall comply with at least the minimum size area requirements of the zoning district in which located, except otherwise approved by the planning commission ~~{as described in Chapter 16.24}~~.

C. *{Unchanged}*

D. All lot measurements shall be net measurements, not including any part of any street, alley, or ~~{crosswalkway}~~ **CROSSWALK WAY**. Easements, however, shall be regarded as within the lot.

E. *{Unchanged}*

F. *{Unchanged}*

16.28.090 - Public sites and open spaces.

Where a proposed park, playground, school or other public use shown on the ~~{master development}~~ **COMPREHENSIVE** plan for Middletown is located in whole or in part in a subdivision, such sites shall be indicated on the subdivision plat. School, park and other public sites are to be reserved and negotiated within one year of the recording date of the subdivision.

16.28.100 - Required recreation areas to be dedicated.

In all residential developments ~~{(as defined in Section 16.28.030(T))}~~ at least ten (10%) percent of the entire tract of land to be developed must be reserved for recreational use. Where ten (10) percent would be less than one-half acre, such development may be exempt from this provision. Areas that are reserved shall be shown on the plat and approved by the planning commission.

Chapter 16.32 - IMPROVEMENTS

Sections:

16.32.020 - Minimum requirements.

A. *{Unchanged}*

B. *{Unchanged}*

C. *{Unchanged}*

D. *{Unchanged}*

E. *{Unchanged}*

F. **Street Signs.** A name sign of an approved design shall be erected by the ~~{town}~~ **DEVELOPER, INITIALLY**, at each new street or road intersection. **SUBSEQUENT REPLACEMENTS ARE DONE BY THE TOWN.**

G. *{Unchanged}*

H. *{Unchanged}*

SECTION II. BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) calendar days following its approval by the Burgess and Commissioners.

INTRODUCED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2015

PASSED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2015

EFFECTIVE DATE: _____, 2015

ATTEST:

**BURGESS AND COMMISSIONERS
OF MIDDLETOWN**

Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

By: _____
John D. Miller, Burgess



MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 30, 2015

TO: Burgess and Commissioners

CC: Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

FROM: Cindy Unangst, Staff Planner

SUBJECT: Planning Commission comments for changes to Chapter 17.44 of Code

The Planning Commission has reviewed Chapter 17.44 and has the following comments for updates to this section.

- 1) Change number of times that the Board of Appeals meets from 6 times per year to as needed.
- 2) Delete unnecessary sections of Chapter where language is reiterated elsewhere.
- 3) Other minor edits were primarily for non-substantive and grammatical purposes.

ORDINANCE NO. 15-12-02

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.44 OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE TO MAKE STYLISTIC AND GRAMMATICAL CHANGES AND TO CORRECT REFERENCES TO STATE STATUTES AND COURT RULES.

SECTION I. BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Burgess and Commissioners of the Town of Middletown, Maryland that Title 17, Chapter 17.44 of the Middletown Municipal Code be, and hereby is, amended as follows. Language being deleted is designated by being ~~{in brackets and stricken through.}~~ New language is designated by being in **BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS OR NUMBERS**:

TITLE 17 – ZONING

Chapter 17.44 - BOARD OF APPEALS

17.44.010 - Authorization and appointment.

A.- D. *{Unchanged}*

E. The board of appeals shall have the powers and shall comply with and follow the requirements and procedures for boards of appeal as set forth in ~~{Article 66B, Section 4.07, Maryland code,}~~ **THE LAND USE ARTICLE, TITLE 4, SUBTITLE 3, ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND**, as same may be amended from time to time.

17.44.020 - Meetings of the board.

The members of the board of appeals shall meet ~~{at least six times each year}~~ **AS NEEDED** at such time and place as they may fix by resolution. They shall select one of their members as chairperson and one vice-chairperson, who shall serve one year and until their successors have

been selected. Special meetings may be called at any time by the chairperson or in his or her absence, by the vice-chairperson. A majority of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The board of appeals shall make a transcript of all its proceedings, showing the vote of each member upon each question, or if absent or failing to vote, indicating such fact, which shall be immediately filed in the TOWN office ~~[of the board]~~ and shall be a public record. Copies of the transcript shall be forwarded to the burgess and planning commission. All meetings of the board of appeals shall be open to the public. The chairperson, or in his or her absence the vice-chairperson, may administer oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses.

17.44.030 - Powers of the board of appeals.

Powers of the board of appeals include:

- A. To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, requirement, decision, or determination made by an administrative official in the enforcement of this title or any ordinance adopted pursuant to ~~[Article 66B]~~ **THE LAND USE ARTICLE, TITLE 4, SUBTITLE 3, ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND;**
- B. To hear and decide special exceptions in the terms of this title as required under this title;
- C. To authorize upon appeal in specific cases a variance from the terms of this title.

17.44.050 - Variances.

- A. **Filing of Variance.** An application may be made to the board of appeals for a variance where it is alleged that the provisions of the zoning ordinance inflict unnecessary hardship upon the applicant. The application must be on a form provided for that purpose by the town. The applicant must provide all the information requested on the form, together with any other

information and data that may be required to advise the board on the variance, whether such information is called for by the official form or not.

~~{Unless otherwise specified or extended by the board, a variance authorized by it expires if the applicant fails to obtain a building permit or use certificate within twelve (12) months from the date of authorization of the variance.}~~

B. Standards for Variances. Where **THERE** is unnecessary hardship, the board may grant a variance in the application of the provisions of this title provided that the following findings are made where relevant in a given case:

1. That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions including irregularity, narrowness, or shallowness of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical or other physical conditions peculiar to the particular property, and that the unnecessary hardship is due to such conditions, and not the circumstances or conditions generally created by the provisions of the zoning ordinance in the neighborhood or district in which the property is located;

2. That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, ~~{there is not possibility that}~~ the property ~~{can}~~ **CANNOT** be developed in strict conformity with the provisions of the zoning ordinance **WITHOUT UNNECESSARY HARDSHIP** and that the authorization of a variance is therefore necessary to enable the reasonable use of the property;

3. That such unnecessary hardship has not been created by the applicant;

4. That the variance, if authorized, will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood or district in which the property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair the appropriate use or development of adjacent property, nor be detrimental to the public welfare;

5. That the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford relief and will represent the least modification possible of the regulation in issue.

C.- D. {Unchanged}

17.44.070 - Public hearings.

All appeals~~[,]~~ **AND** applications for variance and special exceptions shall be ~~{decided}~~ **HEARD AND CONSIDERED** in a public ~~{meeting}~~ **HEARING**. ~~{and after a public hearing has been conducted.}~~ The board shall ~~{fix}~~ **SCHEDULE THE HEARING AT** a reasonable time~~[,]~~ **AND SHALL** give not less than ten (10) days' public notice thereof by the posting **IN A CONSPICUOUS PLACE ON OR NEAR THE PROPERTY** of ~~{not less than}~~ **AT LEAST** one sign of at least three square feet in area ~~[, continuing notice]~~ **STATING THE DATE, TIME, LOCATION AND PURPOSE** of the hearing ~~{in a conspicuous place on or near the property}~~. The zoning administrator or agents may require additional posting in a place of common use or entrance to the community if in the ~~{judgement}~~ **JUDGMENT** of the zoning administrator such posting is needed to adequately notify interested parties. All public hearings to be held by the board of appeals shall be advertised in a weekly or daily **NEWS**paper of general circulation in the town. ~~{as well as due}~~ **DUE** notice **SHALL ALSO BE GIVEN** to the parties in interest including all adjoining and ~~{confronting}~~ **ADJACENT** property owners. ~~{and}~~ **THE BOARD SHALL RENDER ITS DECISION** ~~{decide the same}~~ within thirty (30) days of the public hearing. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to provide the names and addresses of all ~~{confronting}~~ **ADJACENT** and adjoining property owners.

~~{Upon}~~ **AT** the hearing, any party may appear in person, by agent or by attorney. The concurring vote of two members of the board shall be necessary to ~~{reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the zoning administrator, or to decide in favor of the applicant upon any matter upon which it is required to pass under any such ordinance, or to effect any variation~~

~~in such ordinance]~~ **RENDER ANY DECISION ON THE ISSUES RAISED IN THE APPEAL OR APPLICATION.**

17.44.080 - Appeals to court.

Any person or persons~~[, jointly or severally]~~ aggrieved by any decision of the board of appeals~~[,]~~ or by any ~~[reclassification by]~~ **ZONING ACTION OF** the burgess and commissioners, or any taxpayer, or any officer, department, **OR** board~~[, bureau]~~ of Middletown, may ~~[appeal]~~ **FILE A REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL REVIEW OF** the same to the circuit court ~~[of the]~~ **FOR FREDERICK** county. Such appeal shall be taken ~~[according to]~~ **IN THE MANNER PRESCRIBED BY TITLE 7, CHAPTER 200 OF** the Maryland Rules ~~[as set forth in Chapter 1100, Subtitle B].~~

An appeal from any decision of the circuit court reviewing a decision of the board of appeals may be taken to the Court of **SPECIAL** Appeals of Maryland ~~[during the period and]~~ in the manner prescribed by ~~[rules of the Court of Appeals]~~ **TITLE 8 OF THE MARYLAND RULES.**

17.44.090 – ~~[Permits issued by]~~ **PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF ORDERS OF** the board.

A. ~~[Construction Permitted by Board to be Undertaken Within]~~ **ORDERS OF BOARD AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION VALID FOR** Twelve Months. No order of the board permitting the erection or alteration of a building shall be valid for a period longer than twelve (12) months, unless a zoning certificate for such erection or alteration is **OBTAINED WITHIN SUCH PERIOD AND SUCH ERECTION OR ALTERATION IS** started and proceeds to completion in accordance with the terms of such permit.

B. **ORDERS OF BOARD AUTHORIZING** Use of Building [~~Permitted by Board~~] to be Established Within Twelve Months. No order of the board permitting a use of a building or premises shall be valid for a period longer than twelve (12) months, unless such use is established within such period; provided, however, that where such use permitted is dependent upon the erection or alteration of a building, such order shall continue in force and effect if a zoning certificate for the erection or alteration is obtained within such period and such erection or alteration is started and proceeds to completion in accordance with the terms of such permit.

SECTION II. BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) calendar days following its approval by the Burgess and Commissioners.

INTRODUCED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2015
PASSED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 201__
EFFECTIVE DATE: _____, 201__

ATTEST:

**BURGESS AND COMMISSIONERS
OF MIDDLETOWN**

Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

By: _____
John D. Miller, Burgess



MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 30, 2015

TO: Burgess and Commissioners

CC: Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

FROM: Cindy Unangst, Staff Planner

SUBJECT: Planning Commission comments for changes to Chapter 17.36 of Code

The Planning Commission has reviewed Chapter 17.36 and has the following comments for updates to this section.

Additions:

- 1) Include language that all signs be located within the owner's property boundaries and not within the right-of-way. (Section 17.36.030)
- 2) Include language in relation to subdivision and community identification signs that the PC shall have the authority to approve the location and orientation of the sign. (Section 17.36.090)
- 3) Include language that all temporary signs be removed when the circumstances leading to their existence no longer apply. (Section 17.36.150.E)

Deletions:

- 1) Reference to owners of pre-existing nonconforming signs to provide the zoning administrator with information regarding the sign in order to catalog the existence of the sign. (Section 17.36.120)

The Planning Commission proposes the following changes:

- 1) Change the definition of political signs (Section 17.36.020)
- 2) Change the height requirement for subdivision and community identification signs and other freestanding signs in residential districts from a maximum of 8 feet to a maximum of 4 feet. (Section 17.36.090 and Section 17.36.100)
- 3) Change the maximum size of freestanding signs in residential districts from a maximum of 50 square feet to a maximum of 32 square feet. (Section 17.36.100)
- 4) In regards to sign permit procedures, change approval and enforcement authority from the planning commission to the zoning administrator. (Sections 17.36.130 and 17.36.160)
- 5) Remove political signs and garage/yard sale signs from the Exempt signs section (Section 17.36.140) and relocate them to the Temporary signs that do not require a permit section (Section 17.36.150.B)

Other minor edits were primarily for non-substantive and grammatical purposes.

ORDINANCE NO. 15-12-03

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.36 OF THE MIDDLETOWN MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO SIGNS; TO REVISE PROVISIONS RELATING TO POLITICAL SIGNS; TO AUTHORIZE THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR TO ENFORCE CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CODE RELATING TO SIGNS; TO MAKE STYLISTIC AND GRAMMATICAL CHANGES.

SECTION I. BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Burgess and Commissioners of the Town of Middletown, Maryland that Title 17, Chapter 17.36, Section 17.36.020 of the Middletown Municipal Code be, and hereby is, amended by adding thereto a definition for the term "Political Sign" (which definition shall be inserted in the Code between the definitions of "Monument Sign" and "Projecting Sign") and by deleting language in the definition of "Temporary Sign" which language is designated for deletion by being ~~[in brackets and stricken through.]~~ All other definitions in Section 17.36.020 remain unchanged.

TITLE 17 – ZONING

Chapter 17.36 - SIGNS

17.36.020 - Definitions.

“POLITICAL SIGN.” A POLITICAL SIGN IS A TEMPORARY SIGN FOR A LEGALLY RECOGNIZED ELECTION AT THE MUNICIPAL, COUNTY, STATE OR FEDERAL LEVEL OR FOR SPECIAL ELECTIONS OR DISTRICTS.

“Temporary sign." Any sign or banner which has for its purpose the advertising, announcement or display of information pertaining to an event, condition or situation that is intended to be limited in scope, duration of time not to exceed forty-five (45) days, including, but not limited to, commercial sales events, concerts, plays and other commercial or cultural events.

~~[A political sign is a temporary sign announcing or supporting political candidates or issues such~~

~~as bonds or referendums in connection with any national, state or local election. (Forty five (45) days limitation not applicable to political signs).]~~

SECTION II. BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Burgess and Commissioners of the Town of Middletown, Maryland that the following sections of Title 17, Chapter 17.36 of the Middletown Municipal Code be, and hereby are, amended as follows. Language being deleted is designated by being ~~[in brackets and stricken through.]~~ New language is designated by being in **BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS**:

TITLE 17 – ZONING

Chapter 17.36 - SIGNS

17.36.030 - General sign standards.

All signs which are painted, constructed, erected, remodeled, relocated or expanded shall comply with the following standards:

A. – G. *{Unchanged}*

H. Unless otherwise permitted by law, all signs shall be erected, installed or otherwise located on the property which is used for the purposes which are associated with or which relate to the content of the sign. Sign applicants must have approval of property owner. **EACH SIGN SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN THE OWNER'S PROPERTY BOUNDARIES AND SHALL NOT BE LOCATED WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY.**

17.36.080 - Signs for motor vehicle service stations.

Motor vehicle service stations may erect signs as follows:

A. – C. *{Unchanged}*

D. Location. A monument sign shall not **BE** positioned or located in such a manner as to obstruct or otherwise interfere with the sight of motorists or pedestrians and their ability to safely enter or exit the premises.

17.36.090 - Subdivision and community identification signs.

Subdivision and community identification signs are permitted in the right-of-way of monumented, public streets or in locations approved by the Middletown Planning Commission. In addition, the following conditions shall be met:

A. Signs shall not **BE** positioned or located in such a manner as to obstruct or otherwise interfere with the sight of motorists or pedestrians and their ability to safely enter or exit the premises or traverse the rights-of-way nor shall they be located within utility easements or in a location which will adversely impact utility lines; **THE PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO APPROVE THE LOCATION AND ORIENTATION OF THE SIGN;**

B. The sign shall be of a permanent nature, such as brick, stone or concrete, and shall be kept in good repair and in safe, neat, clean and attractive condition by the community association, if existing;

C. If a sign is located in a median strip or monumented island, no portion of the sign may be located within ten (10) feet of ~~{the}~~ any end of the median strip or monumented island;

D. Subdivision and community identification signs shall not exceed seventy (70)

square feet in size, [~~eight (8)~~] **FOUR (4)** feet in height, and shall be subject to any other restrictions within individual zones.

17.36.100 - Design standards for permitted sign types.

All new signs and all existing signs which are replaced, reconstructed, extended or changed structurally shall comply with the following development standards.

A. Freestanding Sign—Design Standards.

1. Road Frontage Requirements. Monument signs shall be permitted only on lots with one hundred (100) feet or more of road frontage, with one sign per road frontage for corner lots.

2. Minimum Separation Distance. No monument sign shall be permitted to be erected within seventy-five (75) feet of an existing monument sign.

3. Maximum Height. Eight (8) feet, **EXCEPT THAT IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS FREESTANDING SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF FOUR (4) FEET IN HEIGHT.**

4. Maximum Size. One (1) square foot per five (5) linear feet of street frontage, up to a maximum size of fifty (50) square feet, **EXCEPT THAT IN RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS FREESTANDING SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED A MAXIMUM OF 32 SQUARE FEET.**

5. Freestanding signs in the town commercial (TC), general commercial (GC), mixed business (MB), and service commercial/light manufacturing (SC/LM) districts shall have a minimum setback of ten (10) feet from any public right-of-way, service drive or entrance and shall

be so located as to allow clear and ample visual sight lines for driveways leading into a street and at intersecting streets and alleys.

B. – E. *{Unchanged}*

17.36.120 - Pre-existing non-conforming signs and historic signs.

A. Any sign which was lawfully established in accordance with all applicable regulations in effect at the time of its establishment but which does not conform to the requirements set forth in this chapter shall be deemed a lawful non-conforming sign.

~~{B. The owner of a pre-existing non-conforming sign must provide the zoning administrator, or other town official designated by the burgess or town administrator, information regarding the sign in order to catalog the existence of the sign. Once the information is received, pre-existing signs that fail to meet the requirements of this chapter will be duly recorded and receive certification in the form of a letter. In any action to enforce the provisions of this chapter, it shall be a rebuttable presumption that a sign is not a lawful non-conforming sign if the sign has not been certified and recorded as such.}~~

~~{C.}~~ B. A lawful non-conforming sign may lawfully remain at its location, subject to the following conditions:

1. Lawful non-conforming signs shall be maintained in good repair and condition. Any such sign which is determined by the town zoning administrator, town administrator or other authorized town official not to be so maintained or to be unsafe shall be restored, repaired, rebuilt, or removed.

2. Except as otherwise provided herein, lawful non-conforming signs may not be enlarged, extended, relocated structurally altered, or changed in nature or character.

3. The wording and content of a lawful non-conforming sign may be changed to accommodate and reflect a change in use of the property from one business to a similar business occupying the same property.

4. A lawful non-conforming sign shall either be removed or altered to comply with the requirements of this chapter when there is a substantial change in the use of the property on which the sign is located, when there is a substantial alteration to the primary structure on the property on which the sign is located or when there is a change in nature or character of the sign.

~~{D.}~~ C. The owner of or other person responsible for a lawful non-conforming sign which sign is in violation of any of the conditions set forth in this section shall correct such violation or remove such sign within ninety (90) days of being given notice of the violation. ~~{E.}~~ D. Historic Signs. The burgess and board of commissioners may designate individual signs at its discretion as historic signs. Historic signs shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter subject to the following conditions:

1. Historic signs shall be kept in good repair and condition. Any such sign which is determined by the town zoning administrator, town administrator or other authorized town official not to be so maintained or to be unsafe shall be restored, repaired, rebuilt, or removed.

2. Historic signs may not be enlarged, extended, relocated or structurally altered.

3. Historic signs may not be displayed on any other portion of the property or building other than its location on the date of the enactment of the ordinance codified in this chapter, and may not be displayed on another property.

17.36.130 - Sign permit procedures.

A. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, all signs being erected, constructed, installed, attached, altered, relocated or reconstructed must be approved prior thereto by the ~~{planning commission}~~ **ZONING ADMINISTRATOR** or its delegate for compliance with the provisions of this chapter including the location, placement and size of the sign.

B. – C. *{Unchanged}*

D. An application for a sign permit shall contain, or have attached thereto, the following information in either written or graphic form:

1. Name, address and telephone number of the sign erector and the sign owner.
2. A site location plan showing the street name and street number of the location or building where the sign is to be placed and the position of the sign in relation to adjacent lot lines, buildings, sidewalks, streets and intersections.
3. The type of sign and a general description of the structural design and construction materials to be used.
4. One set of drawings and/or photos of the proposed sign which shall contain specifications indicating the height, perimeter and area dimensions, means of support, method of illumination, colors, and any other significant aspect of the proposed sign.
5. Any other information requested ~~{by the planning commission or its delegate}~~ in order to carry out the purpose and intent of this chapter.

E. A signage plan identifying the location, height, and size of all signs shall be included on all site plans reviewed by the planning commission.

F. Any sign which is erected, constructed, installed, attached, altered, relocated or reconstructed without a permit and for which a permit is required shall be deemed a violation of this chapter and the owner or other person responsible for the sign shall be subject to a fine and enforcement measures as provided for in Chapter 17.08 of this title. In addition, the ~~{town}~~ **ZONING ADMINISTRATOR** may order the owner or other person responsible for the sign to remove the sign at the sole cost of such person.

G. Upon a showing that an owner, lessee or other person seeking to display a sign is unable to effectively display one or more signs in compliance with the requirements of this chapter due to unusual conditions on the property such as size, location, topography or other situation, ~~{then with the authorization of the planning commission,}~~ the zoning administrator may issue a sign permit authorizing the displaying of a sign not in strict compliance with the requirements of this chapter if, in doing so, the intent of this chapter may still be met.

17.36.140 - Exempt signs.

A sign permit shall not be required for the following signs; provided, however, that all such signs shall comply with the other applicable requirements of this chapter:

~~{1.}~~ A. Any public notice or warning required by a valid and applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation or ordinance;

~~{2.}~~ B. Signs erected by the town, county, state, or federal government in furtherance of their governmental responsibility;

~~{3.}~~ C. Signs prepared by or for the local, state or federal government marking sites or buildings of historical significance;

~~{4. Political signs that do not exceed six (6) square feet in size;~~

~~5. Garage/yard sale signs that do not exceed six (6) square feet in size. Such signs may be displayed only one day prior to the sale and must be removed within one day after the sale;}~~

~~{6.} D. Incidental signs as defined herein;~~

~~{7.} E. Ballfield/sports complex signs and scoreboards that face the inside of a playing field;~~

~~{8.} F. Government sponsored banners affixed to light standards promoting community events.~~

17.36.150 - Temporary signs.

A. *{Unchanged}*

B. A permit is not required for the following types of temporary signs:

1. – 6. *{Unchanged}*

7. POLITICAL SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED SIX (6) SQUARE FEET IN SIZE.

8. GARAGE/YARD SALE SIGNS SHALL NOT EXCEED SIX (6) SQUARE FEET IN SIZE. SUCH SIGNS MAY BE DISPLAYED ONLY ONE-DAY PRIOR TO THE SALE AND MUST BE REMOVED WITHIN ONE DAY AFTER THE SALE;

~~{7.} 9. A-frame/sandwich board/T-frame signs which are placed in front of or adjacent to a business establishment for the announcement of daily specials or featured promotions provided that the following conditions are met:~~

a. The sign is situated on the same property as the business which it is advertising;

b. The sign is only displayed during the business hours of the establishment and is removed and stored within the principal or covered accessory building of the establishment during non-business hours;

c. The sign is not placed in a location that impedes vehicular or pedestrian traffic, impedes access to parking or obstructs the sightlines of either;

d. The sign is not fastened to or erected on a sign pole;

e. The sign is only placed at grade and is not elevated or suspended above grade and does not protrude or project from any other structure;

f. The placement of the sign complies with the setback requirements of its respective zoning district;

g. The sign is no greater than thirty (30) inches wide and forty-eight (48) inches high in size.

C. – D. *{Unchanged}*

E. A SIGN SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN THE CIRCUMSTANCES LEADING TO ITS ERECTION NO LONGER APPLY.

17.36.160 - Removal of signs.

Any sign which ~~advertizes~~ **ADVERTISES**, identifies, or is otherwise related to or associated with a business, group, event or activity which is no longer in existence or active shall, within ninety (90) days from the time such business, group, event or activity ceases, either be

removed from the premises or altered or resurfaced by the owner of the property on which the sign is located so that the sign will not display letters, numerals, symbols, figures, designs or any other device for visual communications pertaining to the former business, group, event or activity. Upon petition of the owner of the property on which the sign is located, the ~~[planning commission]~~ **ZONING ADMINISTRATOR** may, but is not required to, permit such sign to remain on the premises for an additional ninety (90) days.

SECTION III. BE IT FURTHER ENACTED AND ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) calendar days following its approval by the Burgess and Commissioners.

INTRODUCED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 2015
PASSED ON THE _____ DAY OF _____, 201_____
EFFECTIVE DATE: _____, 201_____

ATTEST:

**BURGESS AND COMMISSIONERS
OF MIDDLETOWN**

Andrew J. Bowen, Town Administrator

By: _____
John D. Miller, Burgess

Town of Middletown Planning Department

To: Burgess & Commissioners and Middletown Planning Commission

From: Cindy Unangst, Staff Planner

Date: 11/30/2015

RE: Monthly Planning Update

Major Subdivisions:

Coblentz on Green - Master Plan Amendment approved - March 11, 2013
Planning Commission conditionally approved preliminary plan – March 18, 2013
Improvement plans conditionally approved – October 16, 2013 (Plans expire 10/16/2016)
Final FRO Plan approved – April 21, 2014
Final Plats conditionally approved – November 17, 2014
Site work has begun – September 2015

Foxfield Section 4- 2 homes left to be built.

Site Plans and Minor Subdivisions:

Franklin Commons/Chesterbrook Phase 2 - Site Plan approved – July 17, 2006
Improvement Plans approved and signed – September 16, 2008
Phase 2 Site Plan conditionally approved – January 19, 2015 (Plans expire 1/19/2018)
Phase 2 FRO plan conditionally approved – January 19, 2015
Phase 2 Improvement Plans conditionally approved – Sept. 21, 2015 (Plans expire 9/21/18)

Fire Station – Concept plan submitted to PC for comments – April 22, 2013
Fire Station plat conditionally approved – October 16, 2013
Fire Station Site Plan conditionally approved – November 18, 2013 (Plans expire 11/18/2016)

Horman Apartments- Site Plan approved – April 21, 2008
Improvement Plans conditionally approved – May 17, 2010
Currently approved SWM plans remain valid until May 4, 2017
Mylars signed – September 11, 2015

Jiffas – Site Improvement Plan conditionally approved – October 20, 2008
Forest Conservation Plan approved – October 20, 2008
Revised Architectural Plans submitted and reviewed – June 16, 2014
BOA hearing for variance requests (approval received) – December 16, 2014
Architectural plans approved by PC – March 16, 2015

Miller (Ingalls) – Concept and Phase I & II Plan approved & signed – September 27, 2010
Revised Concept Plan reviewed by PC – September 16, 2013
SHA comment letter received February 18, 2014
Site plan conditionally approved by PC – July 20, 2015 (Plans expire July 20, 2018)

Cross Stone Commons – BOA Special Exception Use Hearing – May 8, 2013
Revised architectural plans approved by PC – March 17, 2014
Final FRO Plan approved – May 19, 2014
Revised Site Plan conditionally approved – October 20, 2014 (Plans expire Oct. 20, 2017)
Phase 1 Improvement Plans conditionally approved – October 20, 2014 (Plans expire 10/20/17)
Dedication Plat conditionally approved – March 16, 2015
Phase 2 Improvement Plans conditionally approved – March 16, 2015 (Plans expire 3/16/2018)
Phase 2 mylars submitted for signature – October 30, 2015
Dedication (donation) plat mylars submitted for signature – November 11, 2015

Nicholson - Final Plat submitted for review – March 2, 2015

Putman – Site Plan conditionally approved- November 17, 2008
Forest Conservation Plan approved – June 16, 2009
Improvement Plans approved and signed by all agencies – July 2010
Revised Site Plan Extension request approved for 6-months – March 16, 2015 (Oct. 2015)
Revised Improvement Plans conditionally approved – March 16, 2015(Plans expire March 2018)
Site work has begun – October 16, 2015

School complex – Kick-off meeting for parking and roadway improvements – September 9, 2015

Annexations:

A.C. Jets Property- PC approval of annexation petition of 35.96 acres – December 21, 2009
Public hearing date - Monday, October 11, 2010
Annexation petition denied – October 11, 2010

Text Amendments:

Subdivision regulations review – Public Hearing for proposed changes – December 3, 2015

Zoning Code Update – Sections 17.36 and 17.44 – Public Hearing date – December 3, 2015

Reports:

Meetings: Next Middletown Green Team Meeting – December 16, 2015

Next Joint town board/planning commission workshop – Monday, March 7, 2016



TO: The Burgess and Commissioners
FROM: Becky Reich, Main Street Manager
DATE: December 1, 2015
RE: Burgess and Commissioners Workshop

PROMOTIONS COMMITTEE:

- Christmas in the Valley is this weekend! We are waiting to hear back from a few more of the businesses, but right now, we are excited to announce the following participating businesses:
 - Kelley Real Estate
 - Mountain Spirit Yoga
 - Dee Buchanan Dance Studio
 - Hometown Gifts
 - Carousel of Beauty
 - Garden Center
 - Orchid Cellars
 - Middletown Sportsland
 - Catocin Construction
 - Candlelight Floral Design
 - Hello Gorgeous!
 - Interior Foundations
 - Middletown Library
 - Middletown Valley Bank
 - Middletown Valley Rec Council
 - MVPHP
 - Rhosymedre Design
 - South Mountain Collision
 - The Main Cup
 - The Valley School

ORGANIZATION:

- The Main Street Board is pleased to announce that our new website is live at www.mainstreetmiddletown.org. Please check it out!
- The Main Street Board will be hold a series of meetings in January to create our annual plans and budget, as well as rank priority projects.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE:

- The EDC hosted in the month of November two ribbon cuttings and a Lunch and Learn mixer on Social Media.
- The Frederick Main Street communities, in partnership with the Frederick Office of Economic Development are going to produce another joint project that promotes local arts. While not every community has an art gallery, there are many places that carry local art (More Ice Cream, Main Cup, Hometown Gifts come to mind). This partnership will promote more of a county-wide (through Main Streets) an art trail.
- The EDC has changed our monthly meetings from Monday mornings to the first Thursday evening of the month. In December, we will begin setting up our next business mixer, and our list of activities for the FY 2017 budget.

DESIGN COMMITTEE:

- The Middletown Design Handbook is being produced by our graphic designer, Bruce Morgan, and he anticipates its completion by the end of the month! We are investigating costs of production, a print on demand option, and creating a distribution plan.

GRANTS:

- We completed a Heritage Area Mini Grant for the purchase of additional local building markers. We should know the results of the grant by January or early February.

250th COMMITTEE:

- The 250th Steering Committee had their first meeting on November 17, 2015.
- We are looking at this somewhat thematically – Revealing Middletown’s History – since we want to bring out fuller contexts, more subject matter, and yes, literally, with the road construction, we will be digging up the old infrastructure. Project ideas include:
 - An enhanced walking tour with a Kick-Off Weekend – this would take the existing walking tours that have been developed, include buildings with our local historic markers, identify other buildings that perhaps have lesser known histories, and we have talked about themes to go along with the Tour – a Civil War theme, a National Road theme. Or, it could be divided up a more traditional way with a walking tour and options for a longer bike or driving tour to be more inclusive/town-wide. An idea was presented if we could make this into an App that could be downloaded was highly favored by the Committee.
 - An Archeology Weekend Event – The Monocacy Chapter of Professional Archeologists pick a project or two out and conduct a limited project. There has not been a professional assessment of the rear yards of many of the buildings along Main Street. The Streetscape project would only look at the limit of disturbance – we are talking about untouched, in-town lots, such as behind 100-104 West Main Street, a circa 1790s building with a rear lot that slopes to Tanner’s Creek, and has not been fully developed. It has prime potential to yield interesting information about the property, and in such close proximity to the National Road where the Civil War soldiers marched, having a limited dig on this property or other lots like down at Walnut Street, has the potential to reveal artifacts.
 - Oral History Project – this may be an expensive project, but a powerful project to undertake and develop. Chris Haugh who created the Heart of the Civil War video that we watched during the 150th celebration, is someone who could be consulted with to produce this type of project. The committee liked the idea of capturing these stories of the older generations before the stories are lost.
 - Conversion of space upstairs in Town Hall to allow for more displays about Middletown’s history. The upstairs space is used quite frequently by a variety of users. The Committee would like to explore adding display cases or the ability to hang local art and use that public space to tell more of Middletown’s history.
 - Monthly Events/Speaker Series – Many histories are presented chronologically, but another way of broadening the public’s knowledge about Middletown’s history is to look at it through historic themes. The Committee has identified the following themes that help define Middletown’s history. These themes include:

▪ Settlement	▪ Agriculture
▪ Wars	▪ Commerce
▪ Transportation	▪ Service and/or Community Organizations
▪ Education	▪ Personalities/Famous People
▪ Religion	
▪ Architecture	
▪ Leisure, Arts, Entertainment	

Using these themes, organizations could each take a turn sponsoring a speaker once a month. For example, Main Street Middletown could sponsor the speaker on the history of Middletown Commerce.

- The 250th Committee is looking for input from the B&C on these ideas! I will be working up budgets for the month of December for the projects.
- Grants identified to help with the costs of these projects include:
 - Maryland Heritage Area Grants – Typically, application due mid-February
 - Maryland Humanities Council Grants – Letter of Inquiry due March 1, Grant due April 15, Award in July 2016 (Large grants up to 10K) Small quarterly grants available up to (\$1200)
 - Heart of the Civil War Heritage Area Mini Grants (small grants up to \$2500)
 - TRIPP Grants (events, and advertising costs)